Ashton Keynes Parish Council
Minutes of a meeting held in the Village Hall on Wednesday 11th April 2012


Present: Cllrs I Woods (Chairman), M Carter, J Freeth, J Hughes, S Jefferson, A Stefanovic, R Thomas, E Tidmarsh and D Wingrove
2012/42
To accept apologies for Absence



Apologies for absence were received from County Cllr C Soden and Cllrs M Jackson and    M Seymour.
2012/43
Declarations of Interest on items on the Agenda



There were no declarations of interest.
2012/44
To confirm the Minutes of the Council Meeting held on 14th March 2012


The Minutes of the Parish Council meeting held on 14th March 2012 were approved and signed by the Chairman.  
2012/45
Matters arising from the Minutes

The Clerk said he had received a message from Martin Rose’s office telling him that the illuminated ‘Give Way’ sign is programmed to be fitted the following day.  After that has been done, the Highways team will finish the paving work.


Cllr R Thomas asked what was happening about the Councillors’ Dinner.  Cllr M Carter said only 60% were available on the 20th April.  The Chairman said this was not sufficient

 
and asked the Clerk to e-mail everyone again requesting their availability on the 27th April, 4th May or 11th May












Action: The Clerk

2012/46
Clerk’s Report


The Clerk gave the following report:  
•
He said he would like to begin by giving his end of financial year unaudited report on the financial position of the Parish Council as of 31st March 2011; the figures have been rounded to the nearest pound.  At the beginning of the financial year, we had £20,467 in the three Bank Accounts and during the year we received our Precept allocation of £32,470 and further income of £8,365 giving a total of £61,302.  Over the past twelve months we have spent £36,189 and we now have a current total in two Bank Accounts of £12,113, which, together with a £13,000 National Savings Certificate, amounts to £25,113. This sum is £4,646 more than at the start of the financial year.  We should remember that we gave a loan of £6,000 to the Village Shop last year, which we can count as part of our Reserves for the future.  What we do have to bear in mind is that the Reserves do include £4,000 ring-fenced for other purposes.  

·  He said that Malcolm Beaven, the Wiltshire Council Highway Engineer for our area, would be having a look at the reinstallation of the Bus Shelter.  Unfortunately, the shelter will have to be replaced in a position a little nearer the road.  So Malcolm is going to decide whether we can fix it in the new position or whether it will have to be done through Wiltshire Council.
·  He had received a letter from St John’s Ambulance asking if the Parish Council was interested in buying a defibrillator – cost between £1195 and £1695.  After a short discussion it was decided that the members were not interested.
·  The Clerk read out an e-mail from Sarah Owenson complaining about the speed of traffic on the High Road.  He said he had contacted Sarah and suggested that if she obtained the names of six people who would be interested in joining a community speedwatch programme, then the Parish Council would support her.  A short discussion then took place about the pavement improvements in front of, and beside, Ellisons Garage that would make the road crossing safer.  No decision was taken, but the Chairman said improvements could be made. 
· He said his last item, as usual, was to ask for their wish list of work for the Local Highway and Streetscene Community Team to undertake this month. He said this will be recorded and passed on to Wiltshire Highways Partnership.  Two items were reported and passed to Highways.
2012/47
Financial Transactions
Payments Made:

    The Council noted that the following payments had been made:

· AK Village Hall (Mar Room Rental)
£      17.40

· Aeshton Services (Grasscutting of Verges)
£    110.00

· Community First (Annual Subscription)
£      36.00

· Clerk’s Salary (Mar)
£    626.44 

· Clerk’s Expenses (Mar)
£      14.66

· HMRC (Tax & NI)
£    192.40

2012/48
Committees, Working Groups and Representatives’ Reports
The Chairman invited members to give their reports:










Footpaths Working Group

Cllr A Stefanovic reported that the footpath dispute in Keynes Country Park with Watermark continues unresolved.

Planning Committee


Cllr R Thomas said that we should be getting on with producing the Neighbourhood Plan as soon as possible.  He said an e-mail about it should be received from Wiltshire Council next week.  The Chairman said that Malmesbury and Sherston Councils were each awarded £20K from Central Government to produce their Plans.  He said that someone should contact Sherston Council and ask how they were progressing with their Plan.  The Chairman also suggested that the Planning Committee should ask extra people to help them form a Steering Group.  Cllr Thomas asked if the Parish Council needs to be asked whether or not the names of the people are acceptable, and was told to co-opt whoever was necessary.  Cllr Thomas said it would be necessary to interview a lot of people to cover the whole of the village and the political spectrum.  He went on to say that at the end of the day another group of over 50% could end up overriding what they are attempting to do. The Chairman said that, come what may, May 2013 was the definable date for the production of the Neighbourhood Plan.

Water Park


Cllr A Stefanovic said that the Cotswold Water Park Joint Committee had now been disbanded.

Twinning Association


The Chairman reported on the evening he had spent at the Twinning Association’s 20th Anniversary celebrations, and said he was happy not to have had to give his speech in French.  He was pleased to report that there was a a tremendous warmth of feeling shown between everyone.  The Chairman also said that the Mayor of Grandchamps Des Fontaines had given him two invitations to visit for a weekend in September and on 11th November.   He said it is the 70th Anniversary of two British Pilots killed in the Second World War, who are buried at Grandchamps, and he would almost certainly go there to honour them. 

Playing Fields Committee

The Chairman reported on the difficulties associated with using the Parish Council’s 1960’s Tractor to cut the grass on the playing fields.  He said that after three weeks he had found that it costs £40 per week for Diesel and that the Tractor was leaking oil.  He said that there had been minor vandalism on the High Road Playing Field to the Youth Shelter and the result of the usage of drugs.  Consequently, he said, the Committee intend to install CCTV.

School Governors


Cllr D Wingrove reported that the Road Crossing Patrol organisation was working well and the Governors were looking for others to join them.  Cllr Wingrove suggested that it would be a good idea to find a local sponsor to cover the cost of paying for a “Lollipop Lady” at the going rate of  £33.15 per week.  The Clerk said he would place an item in the Parish Council’s input to the May edition of the Parish Newsletter once again, calling for volunteers.











Action: The Clerk

2012/49
Water Main Renewal
The Chairman said that a meeting was held in the Clerk’s house with Wiltshire Council, Optimise and the Police, to try and sort out a number of things, including the signage and the prevention of HGV’s going through the village.  It was a fruitful meeting, from which a number of good suggestions were made and subsequently implemented.  The Project Manager, John Clarke, has kept us informed of the progress of the work, which the Chairman thought was five weeks ahead of schedule.
2012/50
The Queen’s Diamond Jubilee Celebrations

The Chairman said the Diamond Jubilee Committee continued to move ahead with various actions being undertaken, such as fund raising.  He said the Committee was considering giving every child in the village a Diamond Jubilee medallion, but they needed to know how many children there are.  Cllr D Wingrove said he would find out how many children there are at the Primary School.
2012/51
Best Kept Village Competition


Cllr J Hughes said that he was almost ready for the Ashton Keynes submission to be sent to CPRE.  He had noticed how much rubbish needed to be picked up before we would be ready to be judged.  The Chairman said a roof section of the Youth Shelter needed to be repaired before being judged.  Cllr S Jefferson proposed the roof should be repaired, which was seconded by Cllr A Stefanovic and the members were unanimous in their agreement.  The Chairman said the War Memorial would not be repaired in time for the judging.  Cllr E Tidmarsh suggested there should be a ‘clean-up village’ day, to which the members fully agreed.
2012/52
Village Shop Update
Cllr J Hughes said that he would no longer be attending the Shop Management Committee meetings, but he would still get the Minutes.  The Chairman requested Cllr Hughes circulate the Minutes of the meetings, in order for the Parish Council to remain aware of the Shop’s progress.  Cllr R Thomas reminded the members that the Shop AGM was scheduled for 10am on Saturday 14th April in the Village Hall.
.





The business of the meeting was concluded at 9.30pm.
The next meeting of the Parish Council will be held on Wednesday 9th May 2012, and will be preceded by the Annual Meeting of the Parish Council commencing at 7.45pm

Page 2012- 15

